
Tuesday, 3 March 2020 

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Delegated Executive Decisions 

On Thursday, 12 March 2020, on the rising of the meeting of the Management Team, the 
following report(s) will be considered under powers delegated to Portfolio Holders, the Chief 
Executive and Directors for the discharge of the Council’s Cabinet functions carried out within their 
area of responsibility. 
 
Copies of these reports have been sent to the relevant Portfolio Holders (and all Members of the 
Cabinet for information), the Chief Executive, all Directors and the Monitoring Officer. 
 
Cabinet Members, or any of the other consultees, may object to the report within five working days 
- by 5.00 p.m. on, Wednesday, 11 March 2020 - by notifying the Officer named on the report of 
the objection and requesting that the matter be referred to the next meeting of the Cabinet for 
determination. 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  ASSET OF COMMUNITY VALUE - CASTLE INN, KENDAL  3 - 20 

 To consider a nomination to list the Castle Inn, Castle Street, Kendal, as an 
Asset of Community Value. 

 

PART II   

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number) 

There are no items in this part of the agenda. 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



South Lakeland District Council 

Delegated Executive Decisions 

Date of Proposed Decision: Thursday, 12 March 2020 

Asset of Community Value - Castle Inn, Kendal 

 

Portfolio:  Councillor Dyan Jones - Climate Emergency and Localism Portfolio 
Holder 

Decision Maker: Simon Rowley - Director of Customer and Commercial Services 

Report Author: Tom Dugdale – Case Management Officer (Support Services) 

Wards:  Kendal Town; 

Forward Plan: N/A 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 Entry of the Castle Inn, Castle Street, Kendal onto the list of successful nominations 
of Assets of Community Value. 

2.0 Proposed Decision 

2.1 It is recommended that the Castle Inn, Castle Street, Kendal as identified on the 
plan attached be entered onto South Lakeland District Council’s list of 
successful nominations of Assets of Community Value. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 A nomination to list an asset of community value was submitted by an unincorporated 
body, set up specifically to nominate the asset, named Castle Inn Kendal Open For 
the Future (CIKOFF) on 4th February 2020. 

3.2 In accordance with s89(2)(b)(iii) of the Localism Act 2011, CIKOFF are eligible to 
make a community nomination in respect of the asset and have a local connection. 

3.3 The Castle Inn is a leasehold pub, which has been closed since November 2018. 
Since then the owners of the asset have been advertising it for lease, but the 
nomination states that it has recently been put up for sale on the open market. 

3.4 The Castle Inn is situated within a large residential area of Kendal, and the 
nomination states that it has been a small but important part of Kendal’s social fabric 
since the early 1700s. It’s main, non-ancillary, use is that of a public house. 

3.5 Section 88 of the Localism Act 2011 sets out those uses of land which may result in a 
property being considered an asset of community value. They are uses that are non-
ancillary and that further (or have recently furthered) either the social wellbeing or 
social interests of the local community. 

3.6 The nomination states that up until its closure in November 2018, the pub was a 
thriving and important part of the community in this area of the town. It mentions that 
it has been a place for groups to meet and sports clubs to retire to post-match for rest 
and recuperation. It is said in the nomination that the location of the pub, close to the 
Castle Street Community Centre, made it able to act as a spill-over to further the 
social interests of the Centre’s users. The nomination states that having a local pub 

Page 3

Item No.1



reduces isolation and loneliness for people living nearby, giving residents a shared 
space to socialise with neighbours, and in turn furthering social interests and 
improving wellbeing. 

3.7 The pub is located in an area of Kendal that was heavily affected by the flooding of 
Storm Desmond in 2015. The nomination states that there is a vulnerability among 
many residents in the area, due to the anxiety caused from the floods and the risk of 
future events occurring. The nomination further states that assets which give space 
to discuss and cement community spirit are vital in such areas in aiding to improve 
social wellbeing. Further the nomination states that the pub is also located in an area 
of town at risk of losing such facilities, and the nominator cites as an example that 
two previous local pubs having been converted into flats in recent years. 

3.8 Section 88 of the Localism Act 2011 states that a building or other land can be 
considered as an asset of community value if:  

a) there is a time in the recent past when the use of the building (that was not an 
ancillary use) furthered the social wellbeing or interests of the local 
community and 

b) it is realistic to think that there is a time in the next five years where there 
could be non-ancillary use of the asset that would further the social wellbeing 
or social interests of the local community. 

3.9 The nomination states that the pub was renovated following Storm Desmond and 
would need very little work to get it open and operating. The nominating body are 
taking advice from the Plunkett Foundation, who are specialists in community pub 
start-ups, and which may give the group access to advice and other resources going 
forward. The nomination also gives examples of possible plans for the future which 
could have a positive effect on the local community.  

3.10 The Council has previously approved nominations of similar assets to be registered 
as assets of community value. An example of this being the Bridge Hotel, Kendal, 
which was added to the register in 2018 in similar circumstances. 

3.11 It is considered that the Castle Inn meets the criteria necessary to be accepted as an 
asset of community value.  The evidence that has been provided indicates that in the 
recent past (before its closure) the use of the property as a public house, which was 
not an ancillary use of the property, furthered the social wellbeing of the local 
community who could use it as a meeting place and to socialise.  On the basis of the 
information provided it is considered that it may be realistic to think that there is a 
time in the next five years where there could be another non-ancillary use of the 
property that would further the social wellbeing or interests of the local community. It 
is also clear that this nomination is in the spirit of the legislation that gives 
communities the right to nominate assets. 

4.0 Consultation 

4.1 The Council has notified the owner of the property of the nomination. 

4.2 The assessment of the nomination was carried out by a Case Management Officer in 
liaison with the Performance, Innovation and Commissioning Specialist. 

4.3 In line with the Cabinet decision on the 20th March 2019, delegated authority is given 
to the Director of Customer and Commercial Services, in consultation with the 
Climate Emergency and Localism Portfolio Holder, to make the decision as to 
whether the nominated asset is added to the list. 

4.4  In accordance with Section 91 of the Localism Act 2011 the Council will send notice 
to all relevant parties of its decision in respect of the nomination. 

Page 4



4.5 The District Councillors for the Kendal Town ward have been notified of the 
nomination. Cllr Peter Thornton has registered his support for the nomination. 

4.6 Kendal Town Council have been notified of the nomination. The Management 
Committee support it being a community asset, but would like to see a realistic 
timescale for the redevelopment of the asset to the project. This is to avoid the 
eyesore that is created by an empty building. 

5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 The alternative option is to decline the nomination.  The officers who have assessed 
the nomination in this case feel that the criteria in the legislation have been met and 
that the listing is justified on the basis of the information received.  Section 88 of the 
Localism Act states that it is a decision for the authority whether or not the criteria are 
met. 

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 

6.1  Empowering customers and communities to achieve the Council’s visions and 
values.    

6.2   Assets of Community Value relate to Council Plan key priority ‘Health and 
Environment’.  Specifically, improving quality of life by working with communities to 
reduce isolation and loneliness.  

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1.1  There are no financial or resources implications.  

Human Resources 

7.2.1  There are no human resources implications.  

Legal 

7.3.1  Under Section 87 of the Localism Act 2011 the Council must maintain a list of assets 
of community value.  

7.3.2  Section 88 of the Localism Act 2011 states that a building or other land is, or may be, 
an asset of community value if, in the opinion of the Authority:   

 The property is actually used, or was used in the recent past, for an activity that 
was not an ancillary use and which furthered the social wellbeing or interests of 

the local community; and o it is realistic to think that there can continue to be 

non-ancillary use of the property which will further (whether or not in the same 
way) the social wellbeing or social interests of the local community; or  

 it is realistic to think that there is a time in the next five years when there could 
be non-ancillary use of the property that would further (whether or not in the 
same way as before) the social wellbeing or social interests of the local 
community.  

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4.1  A sustainability impact assessment has not been carried out. A building or other land 
is an asset of community value if its main use has recently been or is presently used 
to further the social wellbeing or social interests of the local community and could do 
so in the future. The Localism Act 2011 states that social interests include cultural, 
recreational and sporting interests.  

Page 5



7.4.2  The inclusion of assets on the List of Assets of Community Value is recorded as a 
local land charge under the Local Land Charges Act 1975. 

Equality and Diversity 

7.5.1  Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No       

7.5.2  The Impact Assessment published by Department for Communities and Local 
Government (DCLG) indicates there are no foreseeable adverse impacts on any 
single equality group arising out of the legislation relating to Assets of Community 
Value.  

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

The Council fails to meet the 

statutory deadlines for 

responses and publication of 

lists 

The Council faces 

challenge on the way 

in which it addresses 

nominations for Assets 

of Community Value 

Appropriate procedures 

put in place to achieve the 

Council’s obligations  

The Council may be required to 

bear the burden of administering 

any initial appeals in respect of 

either nominations or 

compensation decisions  

The Council’s financial and 

other resources would be 

used to address any 

appeal  

Appropriate procedures 
put in place to achieve the  

Council’s obligations  

Listed assets of community 

value not added to the local land 

charge register  

Reputational challenge  Appropriate procedures 

put in place to achieve the 

Council’s obligations  

Contact Officers 

Tom Dugdale – Case Management Officer: 793269 t.dugdale@southlakeland.gov.uk  

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Castle Inn_Kendal_ACV Nomination – Submitted by Castle Inn 
Kendal Open For the Future (CIKOFF) 

2 Castle Inn_Kendal_ACV Nomination Map – Submitted by Castle Inn 
Kendal Open For the Future (CIKOFF) 

3 Castle Inn_Kendal ACV Assessment Form 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

Community Right to Bid: 

Nonstatutory advice for local 

authorities   

DCLG Website   

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent Date Signed off 

Legal Services   

Section 151 Officer  26/02/2020 

Monitoring Officer   

CMT N/A  

 

Page 6

http://sharepoint/sites/policy/intelligence/Assets%20of%20Community%20Value%20%20Admin%20%20Guidance/Guidance,%20reports,%20notes%20and%20old%20things/Right%20to%20Bid%20-%20Non-Statutory%20Advice%20Note.pdf
http://sharepoint/sites/policy/intelligence/Assets%20of%20Community%20Value%20%20Admin%20%20Guidance/Guidance,%20reports,%20notes%20and%20old%20things/Right%20to%20Bid%20-%20Non-Statutory%20Advice%20Note.pdf
http://sharepoint/sites/policy/intelligence/Assets%20of%20Community%20Value%20%20Admin%20%20Guidance/Guidance,%20reports,%20notes%20and%20old%20things/Right%20to%20Bid%20-%20Non-Statutory%20Advice%20Note.pdf


Circulated to Date sent 

Specialist 10/02/2020 

Human Resources Lead Specialist N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder  

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee N/A 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Note – Report authors must consult the relevant Portfolio Holder, members of the 
Corporate Management Team, the Monitoring Officer, and any other interested parties 
before a decision can be taken. If any objections are received, they must be reported 
at the meeting before the decision is taken. 

Signed by:- Title:- 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



APPENDIX 1 

 
 

Community Right to Bid – Nomination Form 
Version 2 
April 2016 

South Lakeland District Council - Asset of 
Community Value Nomination Form 

 
Before completing this form please read the material at www.southlakeland.gov.uk  
 
 

Section A – Organisation 
 

Name of organisation 
 
 
 

Castle Inn Kendal Open For the Future (CIKOFF) 
We are a group of Kendal residents, mainly living within 
walking distance of Castle Street, but others in the wider 
Kendal area. 

Address (including 
postcode) 
 
 

N/A  

Contact (name) 
 
 

Mandy Barnett 

Position in organisation 
 
 

Mandy had the idea of buying the Castle Inn as a community 
venture.  No formal positions yet, as the organisation has 
only just convened. 

Address of contact 
(including postcode) 
 
 

3 Sedbergh Road 
Kendal 
LA9 6AD 

Telephone no. 
 
 

 

Email address 
 
 

CastleInnKendal@tutanota.com 

 
 

Type of organisation 
 

Description Applying as: 
 

Registration no. of charity 
and/or company (if applicable) 

Neighbourhood forum (as defined 
by in Localism Act) 

  

Parish Council   

Charity   

Community interest group   

Unincorporated body   

Company limited by guarantee   

Industrial and provident society   

A1. Local Connection 

Your organisation must have a local connection, which means that its activities are wholly or partially 
concerned with the administrative area of South Lakeland District Council or neighbouring authority. 

Our organisation, set up specifically to try to keep the Castle Inn as a pub, is made up of 
Kendal residents, many of whom were regulars of the Castle Inn and live within walking 
distance of it. 

Page 9

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


APPENDIX 1 

 
 

Community Right to Bid – Nomination Form 
Version 2 
April 2016 

 
A2. Number of members registered to vote locally (unincorporated bodies only) 

 
A3. Distribution of surplus funds (certain types of organisations – see below) 

 
A4. Your organisations rules: Please send us the relevant type of document for your 
organisation and indicate which it is: 
 

 Please tick: 

Memorandum and Articles of Association (for a company) n/a 

Trust Deed (for a trust) n/a 

Constitution and/or rules (for other organisations) n/a 

 
n/a – Our group is an informal one and doesn’t have any rules 
 
 

Section B – Information on the nomination 
 
What is being nominated 
 
 

A pub 

Name of the premises/land 
 
 

Castle Inn 

Address (including postcode) 
 
 
 
 
 

13 Castle Street 
Kendal 
LA9 7AA 

 
B1. The nomination form must include a map, which clearly states the boundaries of the 
premises or land that you are nominating. Please include with the nomination form.  
 
Map included below.  
 
 
 

21+ and growing daily.  Names and addresses can be supplied if required.  

If your organisation is an unincorporated body, a company limited by guarantee, or an industrial and 

provident society, its rules must provide that any surplus funds are not distributed to members. Surplus funds 

must be applied in part or whole for the benefit of the local area. If relevant, please confirm that this is the 

case. 

This is not relevant because we have no funds. 

Page 10



APPENDIX 1 

 
 

Community Right to Bid – Nomination Form 
Version 2 
April 2016 

B2. Owners and other with interests in the building or land: 
 

 Name(s) Address(es) 

Current 
occupants 
 
 

The pub is currently 
unoccupied and has just 
been put up for sale. 

 

Current or last 
known details of 
those owning the 
freehold of the 
land 
 

Star Pubs and Bars  
 
John.gilbert@starpubs.co.uk 

Registered in Scotland: 
3-4 Broadway Park, South Gyle 
Broadway, Edinburgh, EH12 9JZ 
 

Current or last 
known details of 
those having a 
leasehold 
interest in the 
land 

Not known n/a 

 
B3. Why do you think the building or land is of community value? 
 

Does this use further the social 
well-being and social interest of 
the community? 
 
Include information on: 

 the current level of use 
and who uses it 

 any used by particular 
communities of interest 
or need 

 

Until this pub closed (in November 2018, since when 
the brewery that own it have been advertising it for 
lease.  They have now decided to sell it instead) it was 
a thriving local pub, used by many local residents and 
by the wider Kendal community.   
 
We would like it to be reopened as a community pub 
that can be used by local residents and visitors, and 
ask SLDC to register it as an asset in order to allow 
time for us to be able to put together a community bid. 
 
Its situation near to the Castle Street Community 
Centre, St George’s Church, the shops of Wildman 
Street, and the large number of houses nearby give it 
an ideal setting and large customer base. 
 

 

What do communities gain from 
their use of the asset and what 
would be the impact if it were 
lost? 
 
 
 
 
 

This historic pub – mentioned in written records from 
1834 but probably there since the early 1700s – has 
been a small but important part of Kendal’s social 
fabric and would be a great loss to the community. 
 
Groups previously met there and sports clubs retired 
there for post-match rest & recuperation – which they 
would do again. 
There is a pool table and games room that was used 
by many. 
The Castle Inn is just around the corner from the 
Castle Street Community centre and so was able to act 
as a spill-over to further the social interests of the 
Centre users. 

Page 11



APPENDIX 1 

 
 

Community Right to Bid – Nomination Form 
Version 2 
April 2016 

What is the nature of social well 
being and social interest which 
the asset supports? 
 
Does the use of the asset do 
any of the following: 
 

 Reduce isolation 

 Address the needs of 
disadvantage members 
of the community 

 Reach vulnerable people 

 Support community 
cohesion and 
involvement 

 Enable communities to 
be self supporting 

 Increase access to 
positive activities 

 

Having a local pub reduces isolation for people living 
nearby - regulars to the pub have somewhere to eat, 
drink and get to know their neighbours, interacting with 
each other in a way they cannot without this shared 
space, reducing loneliness and improving wellbeing. 
 
This area of Kendal is vulnerable, having flooded 
during Storm Desmond and previously.  There is a 
great deal of anxiety in the area about future risks.  
Assets that give space to discuss and cement 
community spirit are crucial.  
 
This pub is within walking distance of a large 
residential area which risks losing such facilities  - the 
Prince of Wales Feathers on nearby Wildman Street 
and the Victoria Tavern on Longpool have been turned 
into flats.   
 
Older residents could walk there and have lunch – 
again reducing loneliness and supporting community 
cohesion. 
 
The pub (whether under community or private 
ownership) would provide some local employment and 
training, with cleaning, bar, and kitchen work all 
needing to be done.  Were it to go ahead as a 
community pub then there would also be the potential 
for links with other social enterprises and training 
institutions such as the Kendal People’s Café and 
Kendal College, with whom we have good contacts.   
 
If Kendal residents were to be given the opportunity to 
buy this pub then we envisage that it could help bring 
people together in new ways, providing a welcoming 
space for all, with a folk music night, a seniors’ lunch, 
even a coffee morning for parents of young children.  
We envisage it being a truly welcoming, inclusive, 
family-friendly pub. 
 
We are currently taking advice from the Plunkett 
Foundation who are specialists in community pub 
startups and are undertaking a wider survey of local 
interest and demand in order to help us decide how to 
proceed.  Getting the pub registered as an Asset of 
Community Value would give us the time needed to put 
together a fully worked-out and costed business plan 
and arrange funding and a community share offer. 
In our group we have people with expertise in 
community groups, cooperatives and social 
enterprises, web design, and marketing, running a pub, 
and catering.  
 
 
 

Page 12



APPENDIX 1 

 
 

Community Right to Bid – Nomination Form 
Version 2 
April 2016 

Does the community feel 
strongly that the asset should be 
retained as a community asset? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Yes. 
It has been incredibly easy to assemble, in a matter of 
days, 21 people for this application.  Residents local to 
the Castle Inn have been anxious to see it re-open. 
 
This is one of very few pubs in Kendal that are not 
town centre, and that have a truly local role and one of 
only two on our side of the river.    
 
We are planning a wider consultation on the question 
of a Community Right to Bid, but we wanted to get this 
form in asap. 

Could the asset realistically 
continue to be used for this or 
another qualifying community 
purpose (or could this be 
achieved within the next five 
years)? 
 
 
 
 
 

Very much so.  The pub was thriving until it closed, and 
in the right hands could easily do so again.   
 
The pub was renovated following flooding in Storm 
Desmond and would need very little work to get it open 
again.  We have spoken to the Plunkett Foundations 
specifically about the pub, and they think it is likely to 
meet their criteria which we could access at least good 
advice, but at best grants, loans and substantial 
business support.  
 
There is no shortage of demand for a good pub in this 
area of Kendal. 

 
Section C – Submitting this nomination 
 
C1. Please include the following before submitting your application: 

 The rules of your organisation 

 A map of the nominated building or land 
 
 
C2. Signature: 

By signing your name (if submitting by post) or typing it (if submitting by email) you are confirming that the 
contents of this form are correct, to the best of your knowledge. 

 
C3. Where to send this form: 

 
By post to: Partnerships and Organisational Development Team, South Lakeland District 
Council, South Lakeland House, Lowther Street, Kendal, LA9 4DQ 
 

Mandy Barnett 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



APPENDIX 2 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



APPENDIX 3 
 

Asset of Community Value Assessment – South Lakeland District Council 

 

Nominate By: Castle Inn Kendal Open For the Future (CIKOFF) 

Number of Nominations: 1 

Date of Submission: 4th February 2020 

Address of Nomination: Castle Inn, 13 Castle Street, Kendal LA9 7AA 

Date of DED: 12th March 2020 

 

Section One - Eligible Criteria 

Eligible Criteria YES NO Further Comments 

Is the nominating body eligible to 
nominate? 

 

 Unincorporated Body of 21+ local 
(Kendal) residents, set up 
specifically to nominate the asset in 
the hope of keeping it as a pub. 

Does the nominating body have a 
connection to the nomination? 

 

 The group is made up of Kendal 
residents, many of whom were 
regulars of the pub and live within 
walking distance of it. 

Is the nominated asset outside of one of 
the categories that cannot be assets of 
community value?  

  

 

Section Two – Determining Usage 

 YES NO Further Comments 

1.) Is there evidence of the use being 
described in the nomination? 

 

 The nomination states that until it 
was closed in November 2018, it 
was a thriving local pub used by 
many local residents and the wider 
Kendal community. 

Is this the main, and non-ancillary, use 
of the land or premises? 

 

 The asset’s main use, as stated in 
the nomination, was as a public 
house. 

Or has it been its use within the last 12 
months? 

 

 

The nomination states that the 
asset has been closed since 
November 2018. It also states that 
the owners of the asset have been 
advertising it for lease since then, 
but have recently decided to put it 
up for sale. 

 

 YES NO Further Comments 

2.) Does this use further the social well-
being and social interest of the 
community? 

  It is stated in the nomination that 
groups have previously met at the 
pub and sports clubs retired there 
for post-match rest and 
recuperation. There is a pool table 

Page 17



APPENDIX 3 
 

and games room that was used by 
many. It is said in the nomination 
that the location of the pub, close to 
the Castle Street Community 
Centre, made it able to act as a spill-
over to further the social interests 
of the Centre’s users. 

What is the current level of use of the 
asset and who uses it? 

  The pub is currently closed (since 
November 2018). 
The nomination states that the pub 
was thriving before its closure. 

Is it used by particular communities of 
interest or need? 

 

 

There is no evidence provided to 
support this. 

What do communities gain from their 
use of the asset and what would be the 
impact if it were lost? 

  The pub is stated to have been a 
small but important part of Kendal’s 
social fabric since the early 1700s, 
and would be a great loss to the 
community. 
The pub is within a large residential 
area which the nomination states 
risks losing such facilities, as seen 
with two previous local pubs having 
been converted into flats in recent 
years. 

 

 YES NO Further Comments 

3.) What is the nature of social well 
being and social interest which the 
asset particularly supports? 

   

Does the current (or recent past) use of the asset do the  
following: 

 Reduce isolation 
 

 

 The nomination states that having a 
local pub reduces isolation for 
people living nearby, with residents 
having a shared space to interact 
and socialise with neighbours. In 
turn this, it is claimed, reduces 
loneliness and improves wellbeing. 

 Address the needs of 
disadvantaged members of the 
community 

 

 

 
 

 There is no evidence in the 
nomination to suggest this. 
However, it could be said that 
access to a local pub helps to 
address these needs. 

 Reach vulnerable people 
 

  It is claimed that this area of Kendal 
is vulnerable, evidence of this being 
that it was one of the worst affected 
areas of flooding during Storm 
Desmond. This has caused a great 
deal of anxiety about future risks. It 
states that assets that give space to 

Page 18



APPENDIX 3 
 

discuss and cement community 
spirit are vital. 

 Support community cohesion 
and involvement 

 

  As stated above, assets such as this 
offer a space for residents to meet, 
discuss and cement community 
spirit.  

 Enable communities to be self 
supporting 

 

 

 

 There is no evidence provided to 
support this – in regards to the 
asset’s current (or recent past) use. 
The nomination does give examples 
of how this could be achieved in the 
future if it were to re-open. 
Examples of this include providing 
local employment opportunities and 
possible links with other social 
enterprises. 

 Increase access to positive 
activities 

 

 

 There is no evidence provided to 
support this – in regards to the 
asset’s current (or recent past) use. 
The nomination does give examples 
of how this could be achieved in the 
future if it were to re-open. 
Examples of this include the 
possibility to host music nights, 
senior lunches and coffee mornings. 

 

4.) Does the community feel strongly that the 
asset should be retained as a community asset? 

The nomination states that this is true, and 
proof of this can be identified with the ease in 
which the unincorporated body required to 
nominate the asset was assembled within a 
matter of days.  

The group state that they are planning a wider 
consultation with local residents on the 
question of Community Right to Bid, but 
wanted to get the application to nominate in 
asap due to the asset being put up for sale. 

 

5.) Could the asset realistically continue to be 
used for this or another qualifying community 
purpose (or could this be achieved within the 
next five years)? 

It is stated in the nomination that the pub was 
renovated following Storm Desmond and would 
need very little work to get it open again. 

The nominating party are taking advice from 
the Plunkett Foundation, who are specialists in 
community pub start-ups, and have been told 
that it is likely to meet their criteria. This may 
give them access to good advice and other 
resources going forward. 

The nomination states that the pub’s location – 
situated near to the Castle Street Community 

Page 19



APPENDIX 3 
 

Centre, St George’s Church and the largely 
residential surrounding area is an ideal setting 
for a community pub. 

The group feel that getting the pub registered 
would give them the time needed to put 
together a business plan, arrange funding and a 
community share offer. It is stated that there 
are members of the group with various 
expertise required to undertake such a task.  

 

Section Four - Non-ancillary use of the building or other land. 

Officers are asked to consider the following questions, where appropriate, in relation to non-

ancillary usage: 

 Yes No Comments 

Has the building/land legal requirement 
for this usage changed significantly that 
the asset is not fit for purpose? 

   

Could the asset be made fit for purpose 
practically and within reasonable 
resource requirements and within 
timescales? 

  
N/A 

 

 

Recommendation and reasons for: 

It is recommended that the Castle Inn be accepted as an asset of community Value. 

Current (or recent) use of the asset 
The asset has been closed for just over 12 months (since November 2018). Due to this the 
nomination does not contain a substantial amount of evidence proclaiming how the assets 
current non ancillary use furthers the social well-being and social interests of the community. 
However it does contain some information of how, in the recent past, it was used a place that did 
so. It states on numerous occasions that it is an important part of the community in this area of 
the town. 
 
Legislation 
This states that an asset can be listed as a community asset if its principle use furthers (or has 
recently furthered) the community’s social well-being or social interests and is likely to do so in 
the future. As mentioned above, the nomination states that when the pub was open this was the 
case. The nomination also provides evidence that the group are taking positive steps in looking at 
ways to move forward if the asset were to be nominated. There are also a number of ideas 
provided of ways the asset, in the near future, could further the community’s social well-being or 
social interests. It could also be said that the nomination is in the spirit of the legislation that gives 
communities the right to nominate assets such as this. 
 
Previous additions to the community asset register 
The Council has previously approved nominations of similar assets to be registered as assets of 
community value. An example of this being the Bridge Hotel, Kendal, which was added to the 
register in 2018 in similar circumstances. 

Page 20



APPENDIX 3 
 

 

 

 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22


	Agenda
	1 Asset of Community Value - Castle Inn, Kendal
	APPENDIX 1_Castle Inn_Kendal_ACV Nomination
	APPENDIX 2_Castle Inn_Kendal_ACV Nomination Map
	APPENDIX 3_Castle Inn_Kendal_ACV Assessment Form


